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STATE OF CONNECTICUT
V.
CENTRAL TRANSPORT LLC

CONSENT ORDER # WSWDH 16006

Date Tssued: November 1, 2016

Al With the agreement of Central Transport, LLC ("Respondent"), the Commissioner of Energy and
Environmental Protection ("the Commissioner™) finds:

1. Respondent is a nationwide commercial transportation company whose headquarters is located in
Warren, Michigan. The company provides dock-to-dock freight transport.

2. Respondent is also a limited liability company in Connecticut that operates a terminal at 220 East
Johnson Avenue, Cheshire, Connecticut 06410 (the “site™). The Cheshire terminal consists of a 32-

bay garage/office building.
3. The Respondent is or has been a generator of hazardous waste at the site.

4, Staff from the Bureau of Materials Management and Compliance Assurance, Waste Engineering and
Enforcement Division (“WEED”) conducted an inspection at the site on November 16, 2012 and
December 10, 2012. Based upon the inspections, WEED found that the Respondent:

a. Stored hazardous waste on site for greater than 90 days without having ohtained a permit
for such storage, as required by the Regulations of Connecticut State Agencies (“RCSA”)
Section 22a-449(c)-102(a)(2)(L.) incorporating Title 40 of the Code of Federal Regulations (40
CFR”) 262.34(b), with specified changes. Specifically, from May 4th through at least November
16, 2012, Respondent stored two roll off dumpsters containing more than 1,000 kg of hazardous
chromium trioxide-contaminated soil on site, thus operating' as a large quantity generator
(“LQG™} of hazardous waste for more than 90 days.

b. Failed to conduct inspections of containers of hazardous waste, as required by RCSA Section
22a-449(c)-102(b)(2), incorporating 40 CFR 262.15(a) and RCSA Section 22a-449-102(a)(1),
incorporating 40 CFR 262.34(a)(1)(i) and 265.174. Specifically, Respondent did not conduct
inspections of the two roll off dumpsters, containing more than 1,000 kg of hazardous of
hazardous chromium trioxide- contaminated soil and stored on site. LQGs of hazardous waste are
required fo inspect containers at least weekly.

c. Failed to mark containers with words identifying the contents of such containers, such as
the chemical name, as required by RCSA Section 22a-449(c)-102(a)(2)(J), incorporating 40
CFR 262.34(a), with specified changes. Specifically, the two roll off dumpsters described above
were not marked with any words identifying its contents.

d. Failed to mark containers of hazardous waste with the date upon which accumulation
began, as required by RCSA Section 22a-449(c)-102{a)(1), incorporating 40 CFR 262.34(a)(2).
Specifically, the containers described above were not marked with the accumulation start date.
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WEED conducted an inspection at the site on December 16, 2015. Based upon this inspection, WEED
found that the Respondent:

a. Stored hazardous waste on site for greater than 90 days without having obtained a permit
for such storage, as required by the RCSA Section 22a-449(c)-102(a)(2)XL) incorporating 40
CFR 262.34(b), with specified changes. Specifically, analytical resuits provided by Respondent’s
environmental consultant on September 27, 2013 indicated that the floor of box trailer no. 470402

showed hazardous levels of chromium.

b. Failed to take remedial action necessary following an inspection where a hazard is
imminent or already occurred, as required by RCSA section 22a-449(c)-102(b)(2) which
incorporates by reference 40 CFR 265.15(c). Specifically, the floor of box trailer no. 470402
showed hazardous levels of chromium, and was required to be properly remediated and disposed.

c. Failed to prepare a manifest prior to transporting (or offering to transporters) hazardous
waste for off-site treatment, storage, or disposal as required by Section 22a-449(c)}-102(a)(1)
of the RCSA, which incorporates 40 CFR 262.20. Specifically, box trailer no. 470402 contained
flooring that was hazardous for chromium. Respondent sold the trailer to National Trailer, who
later sold the box trailer to SIMS Metal Management, in North Haven, CT. SIMS Metal
Management did not have a permit to store or treat hazardous waste.

d. Failed to send one-tine notice to landfill with a Land Disposal Restriction Form, as required
by 40 CFR 268.7(b) that accompanies manifested shipment. Specifically, vehicle shredder waste
from the treatment of box trailer no. 470402 was disposed at a RCRA Subtitle D landfill without
notice, The RCRA Subtitle D landfill was not permitted to receive hazardous waste.

By virtue of the above, the Respondent has violated RCSA Sections 22a-449(c)-102 through 22a-
449(c)-113. '

By agreeing to the issuance of this consent order, Respondent makes no admission of fact or law with
respect to the facts asserted in paragraphs A.4. and A.5. inclusive.

On January 7, 2013 DEEP issued Notice of Violation No. WSWDHI13003 to the Respondent to
correct the violations corresponding to those cited in Paragraph A.4.

In correspondence received on March 27%, May 2™ and May 7, 2013, Respondent represented that
violations corresponding to those listed in paragraphs A.4.a. through A.4.d. of the consent order had
been resolved. However, the additional comment addressing the hazardous waste determination on
the floor of the box trailer remained outstanding.

On May 24, 2016 WEED issued Notice of Violation No. WSWDH16013 to the Respondent to correct
the violations corresponding to those cited in subparagraphs A.5.a. and A.5.b. In addition, since the
issuance of the Notice, WEED became aware of two new violations on July 21, 2016 and August 1,
2016, identified in paragraphs A.5.c. and A.5.d of the consent order.

In correspondences received on July 21, July 29", and August 26, 2016, Respondent represented that
violations corresponding to those listed in paragraphs A.5.a. through A.5.d. of the consent order had

been resolved. :

B. With the agreement of Respondent, the Commissioner, acting under Sections 22a-6, 22a-131, and 22a-449 of
the Connecticut General Statutes (“CGS”™), orders Respondent as follows:




STATE OF CONNECTICUT

Vv

CENTRAL TRANSPORT LLC

Page 3 of 6

1.

4,

Respondent shall maintain its compliance with all applicable provisions of the Regulations of Connecticut
State Agencies Sections 22a-449(c)-100, et. seq., including but not limited to those regulations applicable
to generators of hazardons waste identified in Paragraphs A.4. and A.5. above in accordance with the

following schedule:

a. On or before thirty (30) days after issuance of this consent order, Respondent shall conduct a
comprehensive recycling review of the facility (terminals in Connecticut) to evaluate compliance with
Connecticut’s recycling laws set forth in CGS Section 22a-241b(d), and shall submit for the
Commissioner’s review and written approval a Business Recycling Profile documenting the
management of recyclable materials at each facility. Refer to the enclosed Business Recycling Profile

(Attachment A).

b. On or before thirty (30) days after issuance of this consent order, Respondent shall submit for the
Commissioner's review and written approval, a Future Compliance Plan detailing additional actions
and/or operational changes it has undertaken or will undertake to ensure compliance with
Connecticut’s hazardous waste management regulations RCSA Section 22a-449(c)-100, el. seq.,
including, but not limited to, those set forth in Paragraph A.4. and A.5. of this consent order. Within
five (5) days after the Commissioner approves such plan, Respondent shall carry out the plan and
maintain it in full effect thereafter,

Full compliance. Respondent shall not be considered in full compliance with this consent order until all
actions required by this consent order have been completed as approved and to the Commissioner’s

satisfaction.

Status of Notice of Violations (NOVWSWDH13003 and NOVWSWDH16013). This consent order
supersedes Notice of Violation No. WSWDH13003 and Notice of Violation No. WSWDH16013.

Civil penalty. On or before fourteen (14) days afier issuance of the consent order, Respondent shall pay a
penalty of three thousand seven hundred dollars (3,700) as the total civil penalty to be sought by the
Commissioner for those, and only those, violations deseribed in paragraph A.5. of this consent order.

Payment of penalties. Payment of penalties under this consent order shall be mailed or personally
delivered to the Department of Energy and Environmental Protection, Bureau of Financial and Support
Services, Accounts Receivable Office, 79 Elm Street, Hartford, CT 06106-5127, and shall be by certified
or bank check payable to the “Connecticut Department of Energy and Environmental Protection”. The
check shall state on its face, "Bureau of Materials Management and Compliance Assurance, Waste
Engineering and Enforcement Division civil penalty”, and the consent number identified on the first page
of this consent order. - A copy of the check and any transmittal letter shall also be sent to Ms. Julie Dutton,
Bureau of Materials Management and Compliance Assurance, Waste Engineering and Enforcement

Division at the same address.

Approvals, Respondent shall use best efforts to submit to the Commissioner all documents required by
this consent order in a complete and approvable form. If the Commissioner notifies Respondent that any
document or other action is deficient, and does not approve it with conditions or modifications, it is
deemed disapproved, and Respondent shall correct the deficiencies and resubmit it within the time
specified by the Commissioner or, if no time is specified by the Commissionet, within thirty (30) days of
the Commissioner's notice of deficiencies. In approving any document or other action under this consent
order, the Commissioner may approve the document or other action as submitted or performed or with
such conditions or modifications as the Commissioner deems necessary to catry out the purposes of this
consent order. Nothing in this paragraph shall excuse noncompliance or delay.
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Definitions. As used in this consent order, "Commissioner" means the Commissioner or a representative
of the Commissioner. :

Dates, The date of “issuance” of this consent order is the date the consent order is deposited in the U.S.
mail or personally delivered, whichever is earlier. The date of submissjon to the Commissioner of any
document required by this consent order shall be the date such document is received by the
Commissioner. The date of any notice by the Commissioner under this consent order, including but not
limited to notice of approval or disapproval of any document ot other action, shall be the date such notice
is deposited in the U.S. mail or is personally delivered, whichever is earlier. Except as otherwise
specified in this consent order, the word "day" as used in this consent order means calendar day. Any
document or action which is required by this consent order to be submitted or performed by a date which
falls on a Saturday, Sunday or a Connecticut or federal holiday shall be submitted or performed by the
next day which is not a Saturday, Sunday or Connecticut or federal holiday.

Certification_of documents. Any document, including but not limited to any notice, which is required to
be submitied 1o the Commissioner under this consent order shall be signed by Respondent or, if
Respondent is not an individual, by Respondent’s chief executive officer or a duly authorized
representative of such officer, as those terms are defined in §22a-430-3(b)(2) of the Regulations of
Connecticut State Agencies, and by the individual(s) responsible for actually preparing such document,
and each such individual shall certify in writing as follows:

"I have personaily examined and am familiar with the information submitted in this document
and all attachments thereto, and I certify, based on reasonable investigation, including my
inquiry of those individuals responsible for obtaining the information, that the submitted
information is true, accurate and complete to the best of my knowledge and belief. Iunderstand
that any false statement made in the submitted information may be punishable as a criminal
offense under §53a-157b of the Connecticut General Statutes and any other applicable law."

Noncompliance. This consent order is a final order of the Commissioner with respect to the matters
addressed herein, and is nonappealable and immediately enforceable. Failure to comply with this consent
order may subject Respandent to an injunction and penalties. -

False statements. Any false statement in any information submitted pursuant to this consent order may be
punishable as a criminal offense under §53a-157b of the Connecticut General Statutes and any other

applicable law.

Notice of transfer: liability of Respondent. Until Respondent has fully complied with this consent order,
Respondent shall notify the Commissioner in writing no later than fifteen (15) days after transferring all
or any portion of the facility, the operations, the site or the business which is the subject of this consent
order or after obtaining a new mailing or location address. Respondent’s obligations under this consent
order shall not be affected by the passage of title to any property to any other person or municipality.

Commissioner’s powers. Except as provided hereinabove with respect to payment of civil penalties
pursuarit to this consent order, nothing in this consent order shall affect the Comimissioner's authority to
institute any proceeding or take any other action to prevent or abate violations of law, prevent or abate
pollution, recover costs and natural resource damages, and to impose penalties for past, present, or future
violations of law not otherwise addressed by this consent order. If at any time the Commissioner
determines that the actions taken by Respondent pursuant to this consent order have not successfully
corrected all violations, fully characterized the extent or degree of any pollution, or successfully abated or
prevented pollution, the Commissioner may institute any proceeding to require Respondent to undertake
further investigation or further action to prevent or abate violations or pollution,
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19,

20,

Respondent's obligations under law, Nothing in this consent order shall relieve Respondent of other
obligations under applicable federal, state and local law.

No assurance by Comimissioner. No provision of this consent order and no action or inaction by the
Comniissioner shall be construed to constitute an assurance by the Commissioner that the actions taken
by Respondent pursuant to this consent order will result in compliance or prevent or abate pollution.

Access to site. Any representative of the Department of Energy and Environmental Protection may enter
the site without prior notice for the purposes of monitoring and enforcing the actions required or allowed
by this consent order. .

No effect on rights of other persons. This consent order neither creates nor affects any rights of persons
or municipalities that are not parties to this consent order. '

Notice to Commissioner of changes, Within fifteen (15) days of the date Respondent becomes aware of a
change In any information submitted to the Commissioner under this consent order, or that any such
information was inaccurate or misleading or that any relevant information was omitted, Respondent shall
submit the correct or omitted information to the Commissioner,

Notification of noncompliance. In the event that Respondent becomes aware that it did not or may not
comply, or did not or may not comply on time, with any requirement of this consent order or of any
document required hereunder, Respondent shal} immediately notify by telephone the individoal identified
in the next paragraph and shall take all reasonable steps to ensure that any noncompliance or delay is
avoided or, if unavoidable, is minimized to the greatest extent possible. Within five (5) days of the initial
notice, Respondent shall submit in writing the date, time, and duration of the noncompliance and the
reasons for the noncompliance or delay and propose, for the review and written approval of the
Commissioner, dates by which compliance will be achieved, and Respondent shall comply with any dates
which may be approved in writing by the Commissioner. Notification by Respondent shall not excuse
noncompliance or delay, and the Commissioner's approval of any compliance dates proposed shall not
excuse noncompliance or delay unless specifically so stated by the Commissioner in writing,

Submission_of documents. Any document required to be submitied to the Commissioner under this
consent order shall, unless otherwise specified in this consent order or in writing by the Commissioner, be

directed to;

‘Mr, Denver Dixon, Sauitary Engineer

Bureau of Materials Management and Compliance Assurance
Waste Engineering and Enforcement Division

Department of Energy and Environmental Protection

79 Elm Street

Hartford, Connecticut 06106-5127

This space intentionally left blank.
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Respondent consents to the issuance of this consent order without further notice, The undersighed certifies that he/she
is fully authorized to enter into this consent order and to legally bind the Respondent to the terms and conditions of

the consent order.

CENTRAL TRANSPORT LLC

BY: H .

t

(]ndividuﬁf with authority te bind Respondent to terms of consent order)

NAME:  [Kev i Kot lezyusig

TITLE: V S P/LC- Sieh C‘WF + SCULL)"OM-'I/-

DATE: f6-21—- /o

Tssued as a final otder of the Commissioner of Energy and Environmental Protection.

/%ngé/%//é‘“’\ /éucmér’“ /}, cAl b

Mike J. Sullivan : Date
Deputy Commissioner
Department of Energy and Environmental Protection

Congent Order No. : COWSWDH 16006
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ATTACHOMENT A

Business Recycling Profile Form
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